
 

FILED UNDER SEAL 

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

In re: 

BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA AND 
DELAWARE BSA, LLC,1 

Debtors. 

Chapter 11 

Case No. 20-10343 (LSS) 

(Jointly Administered) 

 

CENTURY INDEMNITY COMPANY and 
CHUBB GROUP HOLDINGS, INC., 

Plaintiffs 

v.  

TIMOTHY KOSNOFF 

Defendant. 

Adv. Proc. No. _________ 

 
COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF  

Century Indemnity Company, as successor to CCI Insurance Company, as successor to 

Insurance Company of North America (“Century”), and Chubb Group Holdings, Inc. (“Chubb,” 

together with Century, the “Plaintiffs”) allege for their Complaint (the “Complaint”), upon 

knowledge of their own acts and upon information and belief as to other matters, as follows:  

NATURE OF THE ACTION AND THE NEED FOR RELIEF 

1. This is an adversary proceeding brought pursuant to Rules 7001(7) and 7065 of the 

Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure (the “Bankruptcy Rules”) and section 105(a) of title 11 of 

the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”).  This adversary proceeding seeks to enjoin 

 
1  The Debtors in these chapter 11 cases, together with the last four digits of each Debtor’s federal tax 

identification number, are as follows: Boy Scouts of America (6300) and Delaware BSA, LLC (4311).  
The Debtors’ mailing address is 1325 West Walnut Hill Lane, Irving, Texas 75038. 
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Timothy Kosnoff (“Mr. Kosnoff”) from publishing  

 

 

 

2. Century and Chubb seek a temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction 

to avoid irreparable harm to the mediation, mediating parties and the integrity of these chapter 11 

cases that would occur if Mr. Kosnoff is permitted to continue his campaign of harassment and 

intimidation uncurtailed.  Mr. Kosnoff’s threatened and actual publications of the  

 

is meant to intimidate the parties and disrupt 

efforts to reach a consensus resolution of these cases.  

3. Century and Chubb have become a target for Mr. Kosnoff’s online campaign 

following the announcement of Century and Chubb’s $800 million settlement with Boy Scouts 

of America and Delaware BSA, LLC (the “Debtors”), in the Debtors’ chapter 11 proceedings 

(the “Chapter 11 Proceedings”).  See D.I. 7745, Century and Chubb Companies Term Sheet, 

Exhibit A to the Seventh Mediator’s Report (the “Century and Chubb Settlement”). 

4.  
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5. Century and Chubb therefore respectfully request that this Court issue the 

requested temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction  

 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

6. This adversary proceeding relates to the BSA’s case pending before this Court 

under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and the related mediation.  

7. The Court has jurisdiction to consider this adversary proceeding under 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 157 and 1334, and the Amended Standing Order of Reference from the United States District 

Court for the District of Delaware, dated February 29, 2012. 

8. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the proceeding as Mr. Kosnoff’s 

publications relate to the Chapter 11 Proceedings and the mediation, and are intended to be 

communicated to and influence claimants in the Chapter 11 Proceedings, including their view of 

the Debtors’ Plan of Reorganization, the Century and Chubb Settlement, and other mediation 

issues.  Further, the publications are intended to intimidate and threaten the safety of the 

mediation parties.  

9. The Plaintiffs confirm their consent, pursuant to Local Rule 9013-1(f), to the 

entry of a final order or judgment by the Court in connection with this Motion if it is determined 

that the Court, absent consent of the parties, cannot enter final orders or judgments in connection 

herewith consistent with Article III of the United States Constitution. 

10. Venue is proper before the Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409. 

THE PARTIES 

11. Century Indemnity Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Brandywine 

Holdings Corporation, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of INA Financial Corporation.  INA 

Financial Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of INA Corporation, which is a wholly 
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owned subsidiary of Chubb INA Holdings, Inc.  Chubb INA Holdings, Inc. is 80% owned by 

Chubb Group Holdings Inc. and 20% owned by Chubb Limited. Century, as successor to CCI 

Insurance Company, as successor to Insurance Company of North America, issued certain 

insurance policies to the Debtors and is party to the Century and Chubb Settlement. 

12. Chubb Group Holdings Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Chubb Limited and 

is party to the Century and Chubb Settlement. 

13. The Defendant, Timothy Kosnoff is an attorney representing numerous holders of 

abuse claims in the Chapter 11 Proceedings. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

A.    
 

  

 

   

 

  

  

 

 

 
2   
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After inflaming passions in this 

manner, Mr. Kosnoff posted  

  

  

 

 

 

 

B.    

  

 

 

It 

does not serve a legitimate purpose but instead is used to intimidate a third party, in violation of 

Rule 4.4(a) of the Delaware Lawyers’ Rules of Professional Conduct.  See Rule 4.4(a) (“In 

representing a client, a lawyer shall not use means that have no substantial purpose other than to 

embarrass, delay, or burden a third person, or use methods of obtaining evidence that violate the 

legal rights of such a person.”); see also Matter of Member of Bar Hurley, 183 A.3d 703 (Del. 

2018) (citing Mullaney v. Aude, 126 Md. App. 639, 654 (Md. Ct. Spec. App. 1999) (“When 

attorneys engage in harassing and discriminatory behavior ‘they do not merely reflect on their 

 
4  
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own lack of professionalism but they disgrace the entire legal profession and the system of 

justice that provides a stage for such oppressive actors.’”); Principe v. Assay Partners, 586 N.Y. 

S.2d 182, 185 (N.Y. 1992) (“discriminatory conduct on the part of an attorney is inherently 

adverse to the goals of justice and the legal profession”). 

18.  

 

  

 

Deposition Transcript of Timothy Kosnoff, dated 

November 22, 2021, at 191:23–192:24. 

19.  

 

Id. at 118:10–13; 119:23–121:22; 123:17–130:7.   

 

.  Id. at 119:6–16. 

C.   Mr. Kosnoff’s actions present a clear and present danger. 

20. Mr. Kosnoff’s Twitter account is linked to approximately 4,600 other individuals, 

many of whom are claimants in the chapter 11 cases.   

21.  
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D.   Mr. Kosnoff has ignored prior admonitions about his conduct 

22. After previously hearing complaints about Mr. Kosnoff, the Court directed that 

“[a]ll parties need to be able to express their views in a way that puts their views out there, but 

doesn’t denigrate anyone else… it’s wholly unhelpful to your position to be inflammatory, 

defamatory, anything other than professional and civil.”  Hrg. Tr. Nov. 17, 2921 at 50:9-25.  The 

Court went on to state that, “[a]s an attorney, your currency is your credibility and those who 

don’t act professionally, those who don’t act civilly and with basic decency, do nothing for their 

credibility either in front of this Court or generally.”  Id.  

23. Mr. Kosnoff ignored that directive entirely, and despite requests from Century to 

cease this conduct, it has worsened.  

E.  All efforts to get Mr. Kosnoff to cease and desist have failed. 

24.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

COUNT ONE 

(Order pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a)) 

24. Plaintiffs reallege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1-23, which are 

incorporated by reference as if set forth fully herein.  
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25. Plaintiffs bring this claim under 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a). 

25. 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a) empowers federal courts to “issue all writs necessary or 

appropriate in aid of their respective jurisdictions.” 

26. On June 9, 2020, this Court entered the Order (I) Appointing Mediations, (ii) 

Referring Certain Matters to mediation, and (iii) Granting Related Relief, [D.I. 812] (the 

“Mediation Order”).  The Mediation Order referred to mediation “the comprehensive resolution 

of issues and claims in BSA’s chapter 11 case through a chapter 11 plan,” and designated various 

parties, including the Debtors and insurers, as mediation parties.   

27. Mr. Kosnoff has attempted to disrupt and manipulate the resolution of issues 

through mediation, and intimidate mediation parties through his Twitter posts. 

28. Mr. Kosnoff’s actions have interfered with the mediation parities’ efforts to 

conduct mediation in an orderly fashion in accordance with the Mediation Order. 

29. In addition, Mr. Kosnoff’s actions violate 18 U.S.C. § 2261A(2) and N.Y. Penal 

Code §§ 240.25-240.26. 

30. 18 U.S.C. § 2261A(2) provides:  “Whoever—(2) with the intent to … harass, 

intimidate, … uses … any interactive computer service or electronic communication service or 

electronic communication system of interstate commerce, … to engage in a course of conduct 

that—(A) places that person in reasonable fear of the death of or serious bodily injury to a person 

… or (B) causes, attempts to cause, or would be reasonably expected to cause substantial 

emotional distress to a person,” including immediate family members and spouses or intimate 

partners, violates the federal stalking statute. 

31. N.Y. Penal Code §§ 240.25-240.26 prohibits (1) “intentionally and repeatedly 

harass[ing] another person …by engaging in a course of conduct or by repeatedly committing 

acts which places such person in reasonable fear of physical injury”; and (2) “with intent to 
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harass, annoy or alarm another person … engag[ing] in a course of conduct or repeatedly 

commits acts which alarm or seriously annoy such other person and which serve no legitimate 

purpose.” 

32.  

 

  

 

 

34. There was no legitimate purposes for Mr. Kosnoff to  

 

35. Accordingly, an order under 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a) is warranted. 

COUNT TWO 

(Interference with Century and Chubb Settlement)  

36. Plaintiffs reallege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1-23, which are 

incorporated by reference as if set forth fully herein.  

37. Mr. Kosnoff has taken and continues to take actions to intentionally interfere with 

the settlements that have been reached in the Chapter 11 Proceedings.   

38. His current attack is directed at Century and Chubb.  On December 13, 2021, 

Century and Chubb entered into a settlement with the Debtors.  Since the Century and Chubb 

Settlement, Mr. Kosnoff has heightened his efforts to intimidate Century, Chubb and the 

Debtors’ efforts to implement the Century and Chubb Settlement and disrupt the mediation 

process. 

39.  
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42. Further, this conduct is intended to interfere with the existing contract. 

43. Accordingly, Mr. Kosnoff has used harassment techniques to interfere with the 

Century and Chubb Settlement.   

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray that this Court enter judgment in its favor and against Mr. 

Kosnoff and grant the following relief:  

A. A temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, and permanent injunction 

that prohibits Mr. Kosnoff from publishing  

of the 

mediating parties and their counsel; 

B. An order for Mr. Kosnoff to withdraw his present postings of  

C.  

and 

D. Such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.  
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Dated:  January 21, 2022 Respectfully Submitted, 

By:   Stamatios Stamoulis                           
Stamatios Stamoulis (#4606) 

STAMOULIS & WEINBLATT LLC 
800 N. West Street 
Third Floor 
Wilmington, Delaware  19801 
Telephone:    302 999 1540 
Facsimile:     302 762 1688 

SIMPSON THACHER & BARTLETT LLP 
Jonathan Youngwood (pro hac vice) 
Mary Beth Forshaw (pro hac vice) 
425 Lexington Avenue 
New York, New York 10017 
Telephone: (212) 455-2000 
Facsimile: (212) 455-2502 
 
Counsel for Chubb Group Holdings, Inc. 
 
O’MELVENY & MYERS LLP 
Tancred Schiavoni (pro hac vice) 
Times Square Tower 
7 Times Square 
New York, New York  10036-6537 
Telephone:    212 326 2000 
Facsimile:     212 326 2061 

Counsel for Century Indemnity Company, as 
successor to CCI Insurance Company, as 
successor to Insurance Company of North 
America  
 

 

ΟΜΜ_ΥΣ:80429385.9  
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